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1 EXAMINER BROOKS: At t h i s time I w i l l c a l l 

2 case number 14624, A p p l i c a t i o n of Nadel and Gussman 

3 Permian, LLC, f o r approval of a non-standard o i l spacing 

4 and p r o r a t i o n u n i t and compulsory po o l i n g , Eddy County, 

5 New Mexico. C a l l f o r appearances. 

6 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom 

7 K e l l a h i n of the Santa Fe Law Firm of K e l l a h i n and 

8 K e l l a h i n . Appearing w i t h me t h i s afternoon on behalf of 

9 the a p p l i c a n t , I have two witnesses t o be sworn. 

10 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 

11 MR. RANKIN: I'm Adam Rankin, Holland & 

12 Hart, Santa Fe, on behalf of DHA and O i l and Gas 

13 Operators. No witnesses. 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Would the witnesses 

15 i d e n t i f y themselves, please? 

16 MS. JOHNSON: C r y s t a l Emerald Johnson of 

17 Nagel and Gussman Permian. 

18 MR. MATTEUCCI: 'Michael Nicholas Matteucci, 

19 Nagel and Gussman Permian. 

2 0 [Whereupon the witnesses were duly sworn.] 

21 MR. KELLAHIN: By way of i n t r o d u c t i o n , 

22 Mr. Examiner, Jim Bruce f i l e d t h i s case on behalf of 

23 Nadel and Gussman back on March 15th of t h i s year. And 

24 at the time of t h a t f i l i n g , then, there's a l i s t of 

25 p a r t i e s t h a t were t o be pooled. Since t h a t time Emerald 
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1 Johnson, the land person f o r Nadel and Gussman, has 

2 devoted a s u b s t a n t i a l amount of time n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h 

3 Nearburg E x p l o r a t i o n , not only on p a r t i c i p a t i o n but on 

4 the o r i e n t a t i o n of the spacing u n i t s . 

5 That f i n a l l y was concluded i n l a t e October of 

6 t h i s year. And as a consequence of t h a t , other p a r t i e s 

7 j o i n e d i n w i t h Nadel and Gussman. So as we come t o the 

8 hearing, then, t h i s week the only p a r t i e s t h a t were t o 

9 be pooled were a few people t h a t we could not f i n d 

10 because the addresses we had were f i n e , we j u s t couldn't 

11 get them t o respond t o us. 

12 There was one a d d i t i o n a l p a r t y , a David Scott 

13 Manning, who at the time --

14 MS. JOHNSON: Brian. 

15 MR. KELLAHIN: Brian Scott Manning, who at 

16 the time the a p p l i c a t i o n was f i l e d , was the mineral 

17 owner of a small i n t e r e s t . Ms. Johnson has negotiated 

18 w i t h Mr. Manning unsuccessfully. And subsequent t o the 

19 f i l i n g of the p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s , then Mr. Manning 

20 entered i n t o an o i l and gas lease w i t h one of the 

21 David H. A r r i n g t o n companies, and he c a l l s i t DHA, LLC. 

22 Mr. Rankin c a l l e d me on Tuesday i n d i c a t i n g he was 

23 i n t e r e s t e d . As a consequence of t h a t I c a l l e d 

24 Ms. Johnson, and yesterday she c a l l e d the landman w i t h 

25 David A r r i n g t o n . And the two of them, the land person, 
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1 negotiated a r e s o l u t i o n where A r r i n g t o n i s now agreeing 

2 t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . So having sa i d t h a t , we 

3 w i l l give you a l i s t i n a minute of those p a r t i e s we're 

4 d e l e t i n g from the p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , one of which i s 

5 Mr. Rankin's c l i e n t . 

6 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. You may proceed. 

7 CRYSTAL EMERALD JOHNSON 

8 a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn under oath, 

9 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

10 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

11 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

12 Q. Ms. Johnson, f o r the record, ma'am, would you 

13 please s t a t e your name and occupation? 

14 A. C r y s t a l Emerald Johnson. I'm the landman f o r 

15 Nadel and Gussman Permian. 

16 Q. On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d before the 

17 d i v i s i o n ? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. Would you summarize your education f o r us? 

20 A. I have a Bachelor's degree i n business, 

21 accounting. And I guess t h a t ' s i t , other than the 

22 m u l t i p l e land .seminars. 

23 Q. Subsequent t o graduation have you been employed 

24 as a petroleum landman? 

25 A. Yes, f o r f i v e years w i t h Nadel and Gussman. 
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1 Q. And what i s your'current p o s i t i o n w i t h t h a t 

2 company? 

3 A. I'm c u r r e n t l y the land manager. 

4 Q. As the land manager, have you made y o u r s e l f 

5 f a m i l i a r w i t h the land ownership w i t h i n s e c t i o n 7 t h a t 

6 the t o p i c of t h i s discussion? 

7 A. Yes, I have. 

8 Q. I n a d d i t i o n , are you f a m i l i a r w i t h n e g o t i a t i n g 

9 farmout p a r t i c i p a t i o n s , operating agreements w i t h 

10 p a r t i e s ? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. I n a d d i t i o n t o a s s i m i l a t i n g the i n f o r m a t i o n on 

13 ownership, then i t was your primary r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o 

14 negoti a t e w i t h p a r t i e s t r y i n g t o reach a v o l u n t a r y 

15 agreement? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. So t h i s i s your work? 

18 A. Yes, i t i s . 

19 MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Ms. Johnson as an 

20 expert petroleum landman. 

21 EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

22 Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Ms. Johnson, t o have the 

23 Examiner o r i e n t e d as t o your p r o j e c t , would you take 

24 what we've marked as E x h i b i t 1 and t e l l me, f i r s t of 

25 a l l , what are we l o o k i n g at? 

1 
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1 A. This i s a base map t h a t simply r e f l e c t s s e c t i o n 7 

2 where our Long Branch Number 2A-12 s i t s i n the east h a l f 

3 of the west h a l f . 

4 Q. Am I c o r r e c t i n r e c a l l i n g t h a t Mr. Bruce, at your 

5 request, f i l e d a se r i e s of p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s w i t h the 

6 d i v i s i o n i n mid March of t h i s year? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. What was your i n t e n t i o n a t t h a t time? 

9 A. Our i n t e n t i o n at the time was t o d r i l l f o u r 

10 north/south h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s i n t h i s s e c t i o n . And do 

11 you want me t o go f u r t h e r ? 

12 Q. No, no. That was your i n t e n t i o n ? 

13 A. That was our i n t e n t i o n at the time. 

14 Q. When we focus, then, on the spacing u n i t involved 

15 i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r a p p l i c a t i o n , we're l o o k i n g at the 

16 east h a l f of the west h a l f ? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q • I s there a w e l l name associated w i t h t h a t well? 

19 A. The Long Branch Number 2H Well. 

20 Q. Have you obtained an approved a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

21 permit t o d r i l l f o r t h a t well? 

22 A. Yes, we have. 

23 Q. Would your t u r n f o r a moment t o what i s marked as 

24 E x h i b i t Number 2? This i s the f i r s t page of your APD? 

25 A. Yes, i t i s . 
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1 Q. What's attached as the second page t o E x h i b i t 2? 

2 A. The C-102 form. 

3 Q. Was t h i s permit approved? 

4 A. Yes, i t was. 

5 Q. And what i s the curr e n t s t a t u s of your a c t i v i t y 

6 f o r d r i l l i n g t h i s well? 

7 A. We are c u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g the w e l l . We s t a r t e d 

8 on October 30th. 

9 Q. So you have commenced d r i l l i n g the well? 

10 A. Yes, we have. 

11 Q. To the best of your knowledge, does the oper a t i o n 

12 on the f i e l d conform t o the approved requirements f o r 

13 the setbacks f o r t h i s h o r i z o n t a l wellbore as depicted on 

14 d i v i s i o n form C-102? 

15 A. Yes, i t does. 

16 Q. Let's t u r n now t o the i n v e n t o r y of the p a r t i e s , 

17 and l e t ' s take a moment t o b r i n g the Examiner up t o date 

18 on the st a t u s of your e f f o r t s . I f y o u ' l l t u r n w i t h me 

19 f i r s t t o what we've marked as E x h i b i t Number 3. At the 

2 0 time t h a t Mr. Bruce f i l e d t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n f o r you, does 

21 t h i s l i s t on E x h i b i t 3 represent the l i s t of p a r t i e s t o 

22 be pooled? 

23 A. Yes, i t does. 

24 Q. The i n t e r e s t c a l c u l a t i o n s associated w i t h those 

25 various companies and e n t i t i e s , i s t h a t t h e i r percentage 
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1 i n t e r e s t i n t h i s spacing u n i t ? 

2 A. Yes, i t i s . 

3 Q. This spacing u n i t i s made up of m u l t i p l e 40-acre 

4 t r a c t s ? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. Does Nadel and Gussman have an i n t e r e s t i n each 

7 of those f o u r 40-acre t r a c t s ? 

8 A. Yes, we do. 

9 Q. As p a r t of your e f f o r t s t o gather up a l l these 

10 i n t e r e s t owners on a v o l u n t a r y basis, p r i o r t o 

11 Mr. Bruce 1s f i l i n g the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r you on 

12 March 15th, d i d you cause a l e t t e r i n c l u d i n g an AFE t o 

13 be sent t o a l l these p a r t i e s ? 

14 A. Yes, we d i d , i n January. 

15 Q. I n a d d i t i o n t o the January m a i l i n g , you've made 

16 other mailings t o p a r t i e s as they appear t o you i n your 

17 studies? 

18 A. Yes. As soon as we found a new address or 

19 discovered a new owner, we'd send a l e t t e r t y p i c a l l y . 

20 Q. Let me have you set aside E x h i b i t 3 f o r j u s t a 

21 moment. And l e t ' s t u r n t o a package of l e t t e r s , and 

22 they're marked E x h i b i t s 4 through 11. When we compare 

23 E x h i b i t s 4 through 11 t o the l i s t of p a r t i e s t o be 

24 pooled, excluding Nadel and Gussman, Nearburg, Yates, 

25 and Cimarex, and s t a r t i n g w i t h Patsy Madden Car --

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
Ddb48b41-97d6-4a2e-9796-d3e912ba326a 



Page 11 
1 Carmoney. 

2 A. That's how I pronounced i t . 

3 Q. Carmoney. Are a l l those p a r t i e s then given 

4 l e t t e r s of w e l l proposals i n AFE? 

5 A. Yes, we d i d send l e t t e r s t o each of those 

6 p a r t i e s . 

7 Q. Going back f o r a moment, then, t o E x h i b i t 

8 Number 3, s t a r t i n g at the top, then, Nadel and Gussman 

9 i s the proposed operator? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And what has happened w i t h Nearburg E x p l o r a t i o n 

12 Company? 

13 A. Well, we r e c e n t l y entered i n t o a JOA w i t h 

14 Nearburg and also received a term assignment of t h e i r 

15 i n t e r e s t . 

IG Q. As p a r t of t h a t settlement has Nearburg agreed 

17 w i t h Nadel and Gussman about the o r i e n t a t i o n of the 

18 spacing u n i t wells? 

19 A. Yes, they have. 

20 Q. Their argument was t o do what at one time? 

21 A. They o r i g i n a l l y wanted t o propose two we l l s i n 

22 the n o r t h h a l f going east/west. 

23 Q. Everybody now i s i n agreement t h a t we'd stand 

24 these up going north/south? 

25 A. I'm sor r y . They probably were going west/east. 
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1 Q. Right. But these now are stand-up u n i t s ? 

2 A. Yes, they are. j 
i 

3 Q. And so Nearburg can be delete d from the pooli n g , 

4 a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

5 A. Yes, s i r . 

6 Q. When we look at Yates Petroleum Corporation, ! 

7 what's the st a t u s of your dealings w i t h Yates? 

8 A. Yates has agreed t o support us and they've signed i 

9 an AFE and returned i t t o us. , 

10 Q. So Yates can be excluded? 

11 A. Yes, they can. \ 

12 Q. And what's your s t a t u s of your n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h 

13 Cimarex? 

14 A. Cimarex r e c e n t l y extended the term assignment t o ; 

15 us of t h e i r i n t e r e s t as w e l l . 

16 Q. Continue down the l i s t w i t h me and show me what 

17 you've done w i t h each of these a d d i t i o n a l ones. 

18 A. With Patsy Madden Carmoney we sent her a l e t t e r . 

19 I t was returned t o sender. Marvin Bohannon was returned 

2 0 t o sender. Fred Bohannon, we were never able t o ob t a i n 

21 a good address. I t h i n k i t was j u s t unclaimed. Mary , 

22 Louise Hubbart was returned t o sender. Brian Scott I 

23 Manning, h i s was d e l i v e r e d . But as you mentioned 

24 e a r l i e r , he subsequently leased t o DHA. Marianne . 

25 Bohannon Jost, it appears that she received the letter \ 
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1 but never responded. And G a i l McClease, we never 

2 received any response from way or the other. I don't 

3 know where t h a t l e t t e r ended up. 

4 Q. With the exception of Brian Scott Manning, have 

5 you s a t i s f i e d y o u r s e l f t h a t you and others on your 

6 behalf have made a thorough and d i l i g e n t search t o 

7 determine the l a s t best known address f o r these p a r t i e s 

8 or i n d i v i d u a l s ? 

9 A. Yes, we have. 

10 Q. And having f a i l e d t o f i n d them, you have caused 

11 newspaper p u b l i c a t i o n s t o be made? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. As t o Mr. Manning's i n t e r e s t , have you ever 

14 t a l k e d w i t h Mr. Manning? 

15 A. Yes, I have. 

16 Q. Did you t a l k t o him p r i o r t o the f i l i n g of the 

17 a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

18 A. I don't r e c a l l , but I bel i e v e so. I t h i n k he was 

19 w i l l i n g t o lease but the bonus amount was j u s t a l i t t l e 

2 0 too high f o r us. 

21 Q. Subsequent t o f i l i n g the po o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t 

22 included Mr. Manning, t o your knowledge, what then 

23 occurred w i t h h i s i n t e r e s t ? 

24 A. I b e l i e v e t h a t i n May he leased h i s i n t e r e s t t o 

2 5 DHA, LLC. 
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1 Q. And a f t e r t h a t you've had conversations w i t h 

2 p a r t i e s --

3 A. With Colina Valdez.. And I believe she's a 

4 landman at the DHA, LLC. 

5 Q. And when I say Mr. A r r i n g t o n , i n f a c t , we are 

6 de a l i n g w i t h the same company, i t ' s DHA? 

7 A. That appears t o me t o be the company of record, 

8 so t h a t ' s why I reference DHA. 

9 Q. And t o complete the thought w i t h the Examiner 

10 now, the i n t e r e s t now held by DHA, what d i d you do 

11 yesterday? 

12 A. Yesterday I spoke w i t h Colina Valdez on the phone 

13 and she i n d i c a t e d t h a t i t was DHA's desire t o 

14 p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l and they simply would l i k e 

15 another AFE and another proposal l e t t e r . She p r e v i o u s l y 

16 i n d i c a t e d t h a t they had the proposal l e t t e r t h a t was 

17 sent t o Mr. Manning. So I agreed t o send her a new 

18 l e t t e r , a new AFE, and the JOA t h a t we entered i n t o w i t h 

19 Yates and COG. I don't know i f t h i s matters. But 

2 0 there's a deal between Yates and COG, some s o r t of 

21 i n t e r n a l deal. And I sent t h a t yesterday. 

22 Q. Based upon those representations by DHA's 

23 landman, are you w i l l i n g t o have them dropped from the 

24 p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

25 A. Yes. I t was my understanding t h a t they wished t o 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
bdb48b41-97d6-4a2e-9796-d3e912ba326a 



Page 15 

1 p a r t i c i p a t e . And so under t h a t assumption, then, I 

2 don't mind removing them. 

3 Q. Let's t u r n now t o what i s marked as E x h i b i t 

4 Number 12. This i s the f i r s t of two AFEs. When you 

5 look at E x h i b i t 12, what i s the o r i g i n a l date of t h i s 

6 AFE? 

7 A. January 13th, 2011. 

8 Q. Does t h i s represent a copy of the AFE t h a t you 

9 sent t o a l l the p a r t i e s t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s well? 

10 A. Yes. The one i n January t h a t we sent, yes. 

11 Q. As we move towards the cu r r e n t date has t h i s AFE, 

12 the o r i g i n a l AFE, been revised? 

13 A. I t has been. 

14 Q. I f we t u r n now t o what i s marked E x h i b i t 13, i s 

15 t h i s your l a t e s t estimate of costs f o r the well? 

16 A. Yes. This i s the AFE t h a t I submitted t o DHA 

17 yesterday. 

18 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, w e ' l l have a 

19 g e o l o g i s t t h a t can more s p e c i f i c a l l y describe the 

20 d e t a i l s and the changes i n a moment. 

21 Q. (By Mr. Kel l a h i n ) But f o r your purposes, 

22 Ms. Johnson, what are the p r i n c i p a l increases associated 

23 w i t h the two AFEs? 

24 A. I'm not an expert on AFEs. But the most g l a r i n g , 

25 costs, .would be t h a t the f i r s t AFE d i d n ' t include a 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
bdb48b41 -97d6-4a2e-9796-d3e912ba326a 



Page 16 
1 p i l o t hole and the new AFE does. And then I also 

2 b e l i e v e t h a t the completion costs are higher on the 

3 second AFE. 

4 Q. As p a r t of the n e g o t i a t i o n s reaching, I guess, 

5 two d i f f e r e n t agreements d e a l i n g w i t h the JOAs, has 

6 there been a c o l l e c t i v e agreement as t o what overhead 

7 rates t o associate w i t h the d r i l l i n g of t h i s w e l l and 

8 i t s production? 

9 A. Yes, there has been. 

10 Q. And what i s the number? 

11 A. 6,000 and 6 00. 

12 Q. Do you recommend t o the Examiner t h a t those 

13 numbers also be used against any pool p a r t y should they 

14 be a non-consenting p a r t y under the terms of the pool 

15 party? 

16 A. Yes, I would. 

17 Q. And those numbers again were what? 

18 A. 6,000 and 6 00. 

19 Q. As we then continue w i t h the e x h i b i t s , 

20 E x h i b i t 14, what i s represented i n E x h i b i t Number 14? 

21 A. E x h i b i t Number 14 appears t o be a t i m e l i n e of 

22 events t h a t occurred from the i n i t i a l w e l l proposal 

23 l e t t e r s up u n t i l October 30th. 

24 Q. I s t h i s t i m e l i n e i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s taken and 

25 a s s i m i l a t e d i n t o a t i m e l i n e associated w i t h Brian Scott 
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1 Manning's i n t e r e s t ? 

2 A. Yes, i t does. 

3 QT And when t h i s was prepared, the assumption i s 

4 t h a t Mr. Manning's lessee might be i n o p p o s i t i o n t o the 

5 pool? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. We're going t o bypass the d e t a i l s of i t , but t o 

8 the best of your knowledge, at the time you prepared the 

9 e n t r i e s t h i s summarizes what you have done i n order t o 

10 get Mr. Manning's i n t e r e s t pooled? 

11 A. Yes. To the best of my memory t h i s i s what I 

12 summarized was every event t h a t occurred. But i t d i d 

13 drag out f o r a wh i l e . 

14 Q. And then a f t e r Mr. Manning entered i n t o an o i l 

15 and gas lease w i t h Mr. A r r i n g t o n ' s company t h i s summary 

16 r e f l e c t s contacts w i t h Mr. A r r i n g t o n ' s company? 

17 A. Yes, i t does. 

18 Q. As t o a l l of the other p a r t i e s you now seek t o 

19 pool, do you b e l i e v e you have concluded a d i l i g e n t and 

20 good f a i t h e f f o r t t o reach a v o l u n t a r y agreement? 

21 A. Yes, I do. 

22 Q. And you've exhausted e f f o r t s t o f i n d these people 

23 i n a l l reasonable ways? 

24 A. Yes, t o the best of my a b i l i t y . 

25 Q. You've contacted the necessary I n t e r n e t searches 
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1 t o see i f you can f i n d any of these people? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. At t h i s p o i n t , then, i n order t o consolidate the 

4 i n t e r e s t s , do you need the assistance of the d i v i s i o n i n 

5 having a p o o l i n g order issued? 

6 A. Yes, I do. 

7 Q. While we s t i l l have you on the stand, i n case 

8 there's any questions, l e t ' s t u r n then t o the package of 

9 the a f f i d a v i t s associated w i t h the various mailings. 

10 MR. KELLAHIN: And f o r the record, 

11 Mr. Examiner --

12 Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) Let's step back. I missed an 

13 e x h i b i t . E x h i b i t 15, would you t u r n your a t t e n t i o n , 

14 Ms. Johnson, t o E x h i b i t 15. Do you have t h a t before 

15 you? 

16 A. I have i t . 

17 Q. What does t h i s represent? 

18 A. I t i s a copy of the o i l and gas lease between 

19 Brian Scott Manning and DHA, LLC. 

2 0 Q. And when you t u r n t o the l a s t page, t h i s o i l and 

21 gas lease was recorded i n Lea County when? 

22 A. On May 18th, 2011. 

23 'Q. Now, when you t u r n t o the a f f i d a v i t and notices, 

24 would you now look at what i s marked as E x h i b i t 

2 5 Number 16? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Have you reviewed Mr. Bruce's co m p i l a t i o n of h i s 

3 n o t i c e , l e t t e r s , and the various p a r t i e s t h a t he's 

4 attempted t o n o t i f y ? 

5 A. Yes, I have. 

6 Q. And i s a l l t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n consistent w i t h your 

7 understanding and r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. Do you bel i e v e i t t o be t r u e and correct? 

10 A. Yes, I do. 

11 Q. And subsequent t o sending the n o t i c e , d i d 

12 Mr. Bruce also cause the newspaper i n Carlsbad t o issue 

13 a newspaper p u b l i c a t i o n concerning t h i s case? 

14 A. Yes, he d i d . 

15 Q. And t h a t ' s marked as E x h i b i t 17? 

16 A. Yes, i t i s . 

17 Q. Now, as we look at E x h i b i t 18, have you reviewed 

18 my a f f i d a v i t t o s a t i s f y y o u r s e l f t o the best of your 

19 knowledge t h a t i t ' s been accurate as t o the p a r t i e s t o 

20 be pooled and as t o the l i s t s at t h a t time of p a r t i e s 

21 t h a t had i n t e r e s t s a d j o i n i n g the o f f s e t of the 

22 non-standard operation u n i t ? 

23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. When you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 19, i s t h i s a 

25 supplemental a f f i d a v i t t h a t I have signed t h a t 
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1 represents the supplement i n f o r m a t i o n you found about 

2 a d d i t i o n a l p a r t i e s t h a t were o f f s e t t i n g the non-standard 

3 ope r a t i o n u n i t ? 

4 A. Yes, i t i s . 

5 Q. And then f i n a l l y E x h i b i t 20, then, i s my 

6 newspaper p u b l i c a t i o n of t h i s case and the n o t i c e of 

7 hearing? 

8 A. Yes. 

9 MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, w i t h your 

10 permission t h a t concludes my examination of Ms. Johnson. 

11 We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of E x h i b i t s 1 through 20. 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: E x h i b i t s 1 through 20 are 

13 admitted. 

14 [ E x h i b i t s 1 through 2 0 admitted.] 

15 EXAMINER BROOKS: Now, l e t ' s see, which of 

16 these p a r t i e s have you been unable t o contact? 

17 MS. JOHNSON: Okay. I f you look at 

18 E x h i b i t Number 3. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: That's what I'm lo o k i n g 

20 a t . 

21 MS. JOHNSON: I f you s t a r t a t Patsy Madden 

22 Carmoney, everybody except f o r Brian Scott Manning. 

23 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. So Patsy Madden 

24 Carmoney, Marvin J. Bohannon, Fred Bohannon, Mary Louise 

25 Hubbart, and Marianne Bohannon Jost, and Gai l McClease 
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1 you've been unable t o contact? 

2 MS. JOHNSON: Yes, s i r . 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Now, some of these 

4 you b e l i e v e you have c o r r e c t addresses; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

5 MS. JOHNSON: Marianne Bohannon Jost I do 

6 because she signed her green cards, but we j u s t were 

7 never able t o e s t a b l i s h contact w i t h her. And I d i d 

8 reach at l e a s t one member of the Bohannon f a m i l y and he 

9 gave me as many addresses as he thought might be 

10 r e l e v a n t , but none of them worked, p a r t i c u l a r l y f o r Fred 

11 and Marvin Bohannon. 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. What steps d i d you 

13 take t o contact Mary Bohannon Jost a f t e r you received 

14 the green card back from her? 

15 MS. JOHNSON: To be honest, i t was so long 

16 ago, I can't r e c a l l . But what we t y p i c a l l y do i s j u s t 

17 continue t o search the I n t e r n e t f o r any re l e v a n t phone 

18 number. I have an a s s i s t a n t who helps as w e l l , and we 

19 sometimes use search engines. I don't b e l i e v e t h a t we 

2 0 ever found a good phone number f o r her. 

21 EXAMINER BROOKS: Did you i n q u i r e of any of 

22 the other members of the f a m i l y about her, about her 

23 whereabouts or how you could get i n contact w i t h her? 

24 MS. JOHNSON: Yes, we d i d . Joe Bohannon, we 

25 lease Joe Bohannon, and he d i d n ' t he had i n f o r m a t i o n 
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1 on Fred Bohannon and Marvin Bohannon, but the r e s t of 

2 the f a m i l y he j u s t d i d n ' t have much. And he may even be 

3 the only Bohannon t h a t we leased, was Joe Bohannon. But 

4 I guess they're not a very close f a m i l y . He had some 

5 addresses, but they were a l l returned t o sender. 

6 EXAMINER BROOKS: The addresses he gave you 

7 on Fred and Marvin d i d n ' t work out? 

8 MS. JOHNSON: No, they d i d n ' t . And then 

9 w i t h G a i l McClease we were able t o f i n d two addresses 

10 and n e i t h e r one of them seemed t o be c o r r e c t . They were 

11 both returned. I'm sor r y . They weren't returned, they 

12 j u s t -- I don't know where they went. We d i d n ' t get a 

13 green card back and they weren't returned. 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: And have you followed up 

15 on any address i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s a v a i l a b l e i n the 

16 p u b l i c records i n Lea County f o r these people? 

17 MS. JOHNSON: Not r e c e n t l y . But we do 

18 t y p i c a l l y search through o l d e r assignments t o see i f 

19 there's any older addresses, and I beli e v e we d i d t h a t . 

20 I'm sor r y . Older o i l and gas leases. 

21 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah. Okay. I guess 

22 t h a t ' s a l l my questions. 

23 Mr. Jones? 

24 EXAMINER JONES: Did COG s p e c i f i c a l l y agree 

25 or was i t Yates agreed? 
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1 MS. JOHNSON: COG agreed and they've 

2 a c t u a l l y executed the JOA. I t ' s a c t u a l l y of record but 

3 they have some s o r t of j o i n t venture agreement between 

4 them t h a t wasn't of record when we f i r s t were searching 

5 t i t l e . But COG signed the JOA and Yates -- I've been 

6 informed by Chuck t h a t he's going t o sign i t any day and 

7 he has signed an AFE. 

8 EXAMINER JONES: Chuck? 

9 MS. JOHNSON: Moran. 

10 EXAMINER JONES: DHA j u s t had Brian 

11 Manning' s 

12 MS. JOHNSON: To my knowledge, yes. 

13 EXAMINER JONES: And the r e s t of them 

14 weren't p a r t of i t ? 

15 MS. JOHNSON: Uh-huh. 

16 EXAMINER JONES: Yeah, I remember a Joe 

17 Bohannon from Roosevelt County. Was t h i s a guy young? 

18 MS. JOHNSON: No. He was older and i n bad 

19 h e a l t h . I t h i n k he l i v e s i n Oklahoma. 

20 EXAMINER JONES: I t might have been the same 

21 guy. I t might not be. 

22 MS. JOHNSON: There's d e f i n i t e l y a l o t of 

23 Bohannons somewhere around New Mexico, I'm sure. But we 

24 couldn't f i n d him. 

2 5 EXAMINER JONES: I don't have any more 
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1 questions. 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. Neither do I . 

3 MR. KELLAHIN: You may be excused. 

4 EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you have another 

5 witness? 

6 MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

7 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Go ahead and c a l l 

8 your next witness. 

9 MR. KELLAHIN: The next witness i s Michael 

10 Matteucci, the g e o l o g i s t f o r Nadel and Gussman. 

11 MICAHEL MATTEUCCI 

12 a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn under oath, 

13 was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

14 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

15 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

16 Q. Mr. Matteucci, f o r the record, s i r , would you 

17 please s t a t e your name and occupation? 

18 A. I'm Michael Nicholas Matteucci, and I'm the 

19 senior g e o l o g i s t f o r Nadel investment. 

20 Q. On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d as a 

21 petroleum geologist? 

22 A. Not i n the s t a t e of New Mexico. 

23 Q. Summarize f o r us your education. 

24 A. I graduated from the U n i v e r s i t y of Texas Permian 

25 Basin i n 2007 w i t h a Bachelor's of Science and Geology. 
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1 Q. Subsequent t o graduation, where have you been 

2 employed as a petroleum geologist? 

3 A. I've been employed by Nadel and Gussman since 

4 t h a t p o i n t . 

5 Q. And your c u r r e n t r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s include what, 

6 s i r ? 

7 A. Current r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s include e x p l o r a t i o n and 

8 operations i n Southeast New Mexico as w e l l as most of 

9 Texas. 

10 Q. Are you knowledgeable about the geology 

11 associated w i t h the Long Branch 2 H o r i z o n t a l Wellbore? 

12 A. Yes, I am. 

13 Q. As p a r t of your a c t i v i t i e s have you generated 

14 geologic d i s p l a y s and made geologic i n v e s t i g a t i o n s ? 

15 A. Yes, I have. 

16 Q. And based on t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n , are you able t o 

17 give us opinions about what the appropriate method i s t o 

18 u t i l i z e f o r sharing production among the f o u r t r a c t s 

19 a s s i m i l a t e d i n t o and j o i n e d i n the forced p o o l i n g of 

20 160-acre spacing u n i t ? 

21 A. To my best knowledge, yes, I am. 

22 Q. Before we get i n t o t h a t l a s t t o p i c , l e t ' s take a 

23 moment and update the Examiner as t o the curr e n t status 

24 of the wellbore. I f y o u ' l l take a moment, and l e t ' s 

25 s t a r t w i t h what we've marked as Nadel Investment E x h i b i t 
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1 Number 21. I d e n t i f y f o r the record what i t i s we're 

2 l o o k i n g a t . 

3 A. You're l o o k i n g at a north/south o r i e n t e d wellbore 

4 w i t h a p i l o t hole s i t u a t e d 330 f e e t from the n o r t h l i n e , 

5 2310 f e e t from the west l i n e . That p i l o t hole has 

6 c u r r e n t l y been d r i l l e d , and we are k i c k i n g o f f a plug 

7 now t o d r i l l l a t e r a l l y t o the south where the bottom 

8 hole l o c a t i o n w i l l be 330 fee t from the south l i n e and 

9 2310 from the west l i n e . 

10 Q. The intended t a r g e t f o r t h i s wellbore i s what 

11 formation? 

12 A. The intended t a r g e t i s what i s commonly r e f e r r e d 

13 t o as the Paddock w i t h i n the Yeso. 

14 Q. So when I look at the geologic s e c t i o n of the 

15 various formations i n Lea and Eddy Counties and look at 

16 the Permian i n t e r v a l s , what p o r t i o n of the Yeso am I 

17 s p e c i f i c a l l y t a r g e t i n g ? 

18 A. We are t a r g e t i n g b a s i c a l l y the top t h i r d of the 

19 Yeso where t y p i c a l p o r o s i t y develops i n the area. 

2 0 Q. Have you looked t o determine whether there's a 

21 s p e c i f i c pool i n the near area t h a t ' s been created by 

22 the d i v i s i o n ? 

23 A. Yes. I b e l i e v e t h a t the North Seven Rivers 

24 G l o r i e t a Yeso f i e l d i s the most appropriate pool f o r 

25 t h i s area. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
bdb48b41 -97d6-4a2e-9796-d3e912ba326a 



Page 27 

1 Q. Do you f i n d t h a t there are any sp e c i a l pool r u l e s 

2 associated w i t h the North Seven Rivers Yeso pool? 

3 A. I t appears t o be on statewide r u l e s . 

4 Q. And t h a t was your i n t e n t i n how t h i s was 

5 permitted? 

6 A. Yes, i t i s . 

7 Q. I n the p r e p a r a t i o n of the C-102, t o the best of 

8 your knowledge, has Nadel and Gussman complied w i t h the 

9 setback requirements associated w i t h o b t a i n i n g approval 

10 t o do t h i s type of a c t i v i t y ? 

11 A. Yes, we have. 

12 Q. Let's t u r n now t o what i s marked as E x h i b i t 22. 

13 What i s i t t h a t we're l o o k i n g at here? 

14 A. You're l o o k i n g a t plan view, b a s i c a l l y a l a t e r a l 

15 view of the wellbore. The surface l o c a t i o n or surface 

16 v e r t i c a l w e l l i s i n d i c a t e d as 0 f o o t , and t h a t i s the 

17 330 from the west -- I'm sorry, 330 from the n o r t h 

18 l o c a t i o n . We have approximately 600 fe e t t o b u i l d a 

19 10 degree per 100 or 12 degree per 100 curve i n which we 

2 0 w i l l then be 90 degrees i n our ta r g e t e d pay zone w i t h i n 

21 the Paddock. 

22 Q. I s t h i s a t y p i c a l d r i l l i n g and completion program 

23 associated w i t h your company f o r doing t h i s a c t i v i t y ? 
24 A. Yes. 

25 Q. I s i t s i m i l a r t o those used by o ther companies i n 
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1 t h i s area? 

2 A. Yes-. 

3 Q. Let's t u r n now t o what i s marked as Exhibit. 23. 

4 And before we t a l k about the d e t a i l s on the s t r u c t u r e 

5 map l e t ' s take a moment, f i r s t of a l l , s i r , and have you 

6 describe what i t i s t h a t we're seeing here. 

7 A. What we have here i s , f i r s t of a l l , t h i s i s 

8 s e c t i o n 7. The east h a l f of the west h a l f of s e c t i o n 7. 

9 North t o south i s the Long Branch Number 2H, the 

10 wellbore i n question i n the forced pool. This i s a 

11 50-foot contour i n t e r v a l s t r u c t u r e map based on the top 

12 of the G l o r i e t a . The G l o r i e t a i s a commonly used 

13 r e g i o n a l marker i n attempt t o derive s t r u c t u r e from the 

14 Yeso. 

15 Q. Touch w i t h me on t h i s p o i n t f o r a moment. Give 

16 us the s a l i e n t p o i n t s w i t h regards t o your conclusion 

17 about the o r i e n t a t i o n of these wellbores i n 7 as stand 

18 up wellbores. 

19 A. As stand up wellbores, based on successful 

20 operators i n t h i s area t h a t we've p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h such 

21 as Mewbourne, Concho, and other operators such as 

22 Nearburg. A l l the wellbores t o the southwest of 

23 s e c t i o n 7 are a l l north/south wellbores based on 

24 s c i e n t i f i c data t h a t those companies have derived i n 

25 terms of optimal o r i e n t a t i o n i n regards t o f r a c t u r e 
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1 o r i e n t a t i o n . That i s the primary reason f o r the Long 

2 Branch Number 2H t o be a north/south wellbore. 

3 Q. I t ' s a carbonate r e s e r v o i r , i s i t not? 

4 A. I t i s , yes, a carbonate. S p e c i f i c a l l y a 

5 dolomite. 

6 Q. I n a d d i t i o n t o being c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what other 

7 companies are doing based upon t h a t science, are there 

8 other components associated w i t h s e c t i o n 7 t h a t cause 

9 you t o want t o stand these spacing u n i t s up n o r t h and 

10 south? 

11 A. Yes. Given t h a t we would p r e f e r t o stay w i t h the 

12 i n d u s t r y standard of a north/south o r i e n t a t i o n , the 

13 Wyatt Draw 18, 19 i n the west southwest quarter 

14 se c t i o n 18 t o the south of us operated by Mewbourne, we 

15 have a p a r t i a l i n t e r e s t i n t h a t w e l l , and t h a t w e l l only 

16 produced water. I have annotated w i t h a blue hash mark 

17 on the 800-foot sub C contour i n t e r v a l l i n e t h a t we 

18 b e l i e v e t h a t there i s some s o r t of t r a n s i t i o n or at 

19 l e a s t an increased p r o b a b i l i t y f o r water production t o 

20 the south southeast of s e c t i o n 7. That's i n d i c a t e d by 

21 the blue arrow t h a t you can see p o i n t i n g t o the 

22 southeast. 

23 Q. Let's t u r n t o the second t o p i c of my reason t o 

24 c a l l you as a witness, and t h a t ' s about the science and 

25 the geology of t r y i n g t o determine how best t o a l l o c a t e 
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1 share p r o d u c t i o n i n the h o r i z o n t a l wellbore among the 

2 i n t e r e s t " i n f o u r 40-acre t r a c t s t h a t have been 

3 a s s i m i l a t e d i n t o a non-standard 160-acre spacing u n i t . 

4 When you look at t h i s data, and r e l y i n g on your 

5 knowledge and research, i s there any other way t o 

6 apportion an i n t e r e s t other than on a s t r a i g h t acres 

7 basis? 

8 A. I t i s my opinio n t h a t s t r a i g h t acres basis i s the 

9 most appropriate a l l o c a t i o n f o r production i n t h i s 

10 wellbore. 

11 Q. When you use h o r i z o n t a l wellbores i n t r y i n g t o 

12 get a t l e a s t data on the v e r t i c a l l i m i t s of the 

13 producing i n t e r v a l , what are you o b t a i n i n g w i t h a p i l o t 

14 hole i n a h o r i z o n t a l wellbore? 

15 A. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case we el e c t e d t o d r i l l a 

16 p i l o t hole t o run a f u l l s u i t e of open hole e l e c t r i c a l 

17 logs as w e l l as take side w a l l cores below w i t h i n and 

18 above the pay zone t o v e r i f y water s a t u r a t i o n s because 

19 water was a concern d i r e c t l y t o the south and southeast 

20 of us. 

21 Q. So at the most, i s t h a t data only associated w i t h 

22 what would occur w i t h i n the 40-acre t r a c t associated 

23 w i t h where the w e l l s i t s ? 

24 A. Yes. The Paddock in this area is highly variable \ 
a 
. 25 i n i t s q u a l i t y and extent, so the p i l o t hole r e a l l y may 

i 
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1 not be i n d i c a t i v e of any given p o i n t w i t h i n the l a t e r a l 

2 as you progress south. Also note t h a t there's only two 

3 deep p e n e t r a t i o n s t h a t saw the ^Yeso, and both of those 

4 were i n the n o r t h h a l f of s e c t i o n 7. There i s no w e l l 

5 c o n t r o l i n the south h a l f of s e c t i o n 7 t h a t may give us 

6 a r e l a t i v e idea of pay q u a l i t y . 

7 Q. I s i t po s s i b l e w i t h the type of data t h a t you're 

8 generating t o take each of the fo u r 40-acre t r a c t s and 

9 do some type of c a l c u l a t i o n t o give you a volumetric 

10 volume of the hydrocarbons associated w i t h t h a t 

11 40 acres? 

12 A. Without knowing p o r o s i t y at any given p o i n t south 

13 of the p i l o t hole, I ' d say at t h i s time no volume 

14 metrics are possi b l e based on surface hole data. 

15 Q. I s t h a t t r u e of almost a l l h o r i z o n t a l wellbores? 

16 A. Yes. And also e s p e c i a l l y considering most 

17 h o r i z o n t a l wellbores i n the area do not even e l e c t t o 

18 run open hole logs i n the p i l o t holes. They do not run 

19 a p i l o t hole at a l l . 

20 Q. So i n conclusion, then, do you see any other way 

21 t o app o r t i o n i n t e r e s t among the pool p a r t i e s and a l l 

22 those p a r t i c i p a t i n g on anything other than a s t r a i g h t 

23 acreage form? 

24 A. I n my opinion, no. 

25 MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination 
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1 of Mr. Matteucci. We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s 

2 E x h i b i t s 21, 22, and 23. 

3 EXAMINER BROOKS: 21, 22, and 2 3 are 

4 admitted. 

5 [ E x h i b i t s 21 through 23 admitted.] 

6 EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you believe t h a t 

7 h o r i z o n t a l -- these one-mile h o r i z o n t a l s t h a t range 

8 north/south i n t h i s s e c t i o n , do you bel i e v e t h a t t h a t i s 

9 the most economic and e f f i c i e n t way t o develop the 

10 reserves i n the Yeso i n t h i s area? 

11 MR. MATTEUCCI: I t i s my opinion t h a t a mile 

12 long or perhaps i n the f u t u r e even longer l a t e r a l s are 

13 the most a p p r o p r i a t e . 

14 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. I guess t h a t ' s the 

15 only question I have. 

16 Mr. Jones? 

17 EXAMINER JONES: , Tom never leaves me any 

18 questions t o ask. 

19 MR. KELLAHIN: I t r y not t o , s i r . 

20 EXAMINER JONES: And I was going t o ask why 

21 your p i l o t hole because i t increased your costs by a 

22 m i l l i o n d o l l a r s ? 

23 MR. MATTEUCCI: Well, i t increased our costs 

24 by roughly 400 t o $500,000. 

25 EXAMINER JONES: Oh. 
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1 MR. MATTEUCCI: The r e s t of the AFE cost i s 

2 i n -- i t ' s been a whi l e since the f i r s t proposal, since 

3 January of the beginning of the year. 

4 EXAMINER JONES: To increase t h a t much? 

5 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yeah, commodity p r i c e s , 

6 again, have increased considerably. And as such, the 

7 s i m u l a t i o n services i n New Mexico has increased almost 

8 e x p o n e n t i a l l y since t h a t p o i n t . 

9 EXAMINER JONES: Your s t r u c t u r e map, i s t h a t 

10 above sea l e v e l or below sea le v e l ? 

11 MR. MATTEUCCI: These are a l l p o s i t i v e 

12 values. 

13 EXAMINER JONES: I t seems l i k e some people 

14 f o r g e t t o put the negative on there, but you d i d i t . 

15 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yeah, working throughout the 

16 basins sometimes i t gets a l i t t l e -- you're not used t o 

17 seeing p o s i t i v e numbers. 

18 EXAMINER JONES: : So those are p o s i t i v e 

19 -numbers. That means i t ' s d i p p i n g t o the southeast? 

2 0 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

21 EXAMINER JONES: And yet -- okay. So the 

22 f u r t h e r you get t o the southeast you get more chance of 

23 water? 
24 MR. MATTEUCCI: I believe there i s -- past 

25 t h a t 800-plus, t h a t p o s i t i v e 800 value, there's an 
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1 increased p r o b a b i l i t y . Again, there i s no p i l o t hole. 

2 And through my discussions w i t h Mewbourne they are not 

3 sure why the Wyatt Draw 18, 19 produced only water. 

4 EXAMINER JONES: I s t h a t why you put t h a t 

5 dash, whatever the c o l o r of i t i s , l i n e on that? 

6 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yeah. Yeah, t h a t ' s why I 

7 el e c t e d t o put t h a t t h e r e . At some p o i n t there's a 

8 p o t e n t i a l t r a n s i t i o n . 

9 EXAMINER JONES: And the reason you had 

10 e x i s t i n g w e l l s i n the n o r t h of t h i s s e c t i o n i s because 

11 of people somehow j u s t --

12 MR. MATTEUCCI: Those were Nearburg w e l l s , 

13 and t h i s was p r e v i o u s l y an area t h a t was h i g h l y 

14 e x p l o i t e d f o r morrow gas. Both of those w e l l s are 

15 approximately, I b e l i e v e , 12,000 f e e t deep and only 

16 logged the Yeso, never t e s t e d . 

17 EXAMINER JONES: So you d i d n ' t d r i l l your 

18 w e l l t o a morrow and plug back? 

19 MR. MATTEUCCI: No, s i r . I t was d r i l l e d t o 

20 3,000 f e e t and then we set a plug f o r t a k e o f f above t h a t 

21 p o i n t . 

2 2 EXAMINER JONES: And speaking of t h a t , you 

23 d i d plug i t back w i t h a plug . And d i d you plug back 

24 the --
2 5 MR. MATTEUCCI: We plugged back --we set a 
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1 cement p l u g above our l a t e r a l p o i n t , and we're c u r r e n t l y 

2 b u i l d i n g our curve t o get t o our l a t e r a l TBD. 

3 EXAMINER JONES: But you di d n ' t put plugs 

4 across a l o t below t h a t or i s t h a t the only plug i n --

5 MR. MATTEUCCI: I can't speak f o r the 

6 wellbores on i t at t h i s p o i n t . I know i t was approved 

7 by the commission though. 

8 EXAMINER JONES: What do you do w i t h your 

9 s a l t water out here? 

10 MR. MATTEUCCI: Right now the s a l t water i s 

11 trucked t o a disposal f a c i l i t y . I bel i e v e i n another 

12 area nearby we're c u r r e n t l y n o t i f y i n g o f f s e t operators 

13 t o convert an o l d morrow w e l l i n t o an SWE. 

14 EXAMINER JONES: So t h i s i s o i l . 

15 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yes, s i r . 

16 EXAMINER JONES: And i t ' s Paddock? 

17 MR. MATTEUCCI: I t could be considered 

18 Paddock. I t e x i s t s w i t h i n 300 f e e t of the base of the 

19 G l o r i e t a . 

2 0 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. Okay. And a l l four 

21 normal spacing u n i t s w i l l c o n t r i b u t e t o t h i s well? 

22 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yes. 

23 EXAMINER JONES: But you don't now how much? 

24 MR. MATTEUCCI: But we do not know how much. 

25 EXAMINER JONES: Did your p i l o t hole change 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
bdb48b41 -97d6-4a2e-9796-d3e912ba326a 



Page 36 
1 your o r i g i n a l estimate on where you were going t o d r i l l 

2 your h o r i z o n t a l ? 

3 MR. MATTEUCCI: The p i l o t hole d i d not 

4 change our o r i g i n a l estimate. The pay came i n almost 

5 p r e c i s e l y where we a n t i c i p a t e d the process developed. 

6 EXAMINER JONES: So i f you could have looked 

7 i n t o the f u t u r e you wouldn't have spent t h a t e x t r a 

8 money? 

9 MR. MATTEUCCI: I f e l t p r e t t y good at t h a t 

10 p o i n t . Not from spending the money, but from not having 

11 t o change our l a t e r a l TBD. 

12 EXAMINER JONES: Does t h a t s t i l l make your 

13 managers say no more p i l o t holes? 

14 MR. MATTEUCCI: You know, w i t h the r i s k of 

15 the water and us being newer t o the play and ev a l u a t i n g 

16 t h i s , we always l i k e t o do a l i t t l e science t o prevent 

17 waste. 

18 EXAMINER JONES: And your f r a c t u r e s are 

19 east/west? 

20 MR. MATTEUCCI: To the best of our 

21 knowledge, we have not run an FMI i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

22 area. But t a l k i n g t o Raymond Raes over at COG, he would 

23 lead us t o believe t h a t t h a t i s the c o r r e c t . 

24 EXAMINER JONES: That's why you're d r i l l i n g 

25 north/south. 
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1 MR. MATTEUCCI: Yes, s i r . 

2 EXAMINER JONES: Or n o r t h --

3 MR. MATTEUCCI: They've run some 

4 microseismic and some heavier duty science than we've 

5 ele c t e d t o run at t h i s p o i n t . 

6 EXAMINER JONES: I'm not sure we covered, 

7 i t ' s not geology, but as f a r as the ownership 

8 s p e c i f i c a l l y w i t h i n t h i s 160 whether i t ' s s p l i t up. 

9 EXAMINER BROOKS: I know we hadn't covered 

10 t h a t . So perhaps I should have asked t h a t question. 

11 These outstanding small i n t e r e s t s , where are they 

12 located i n terms of what p o r t i o n of the section? 

13 MR. MATTEUCCI: I would have t o defer t o the 

14 land expert. 

15 EXAMINER BROOKS:- Of course t h a t would be a 

16 question f o r the land witness. 

17 MR. KELLAHIN: We'll need t o r e c a l l the land 

18 witness. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Very good. I have 

20 no f u r t h e r questions of t h i s witness. 

21 EXAMINER JONES: I don't e i t h e r . Thank you. 

22 CRYSTAL EMERALD JOHNSON 

2 3 ' REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

25 Q. Ms. Johnson, you've been r e c a l l e d t o the stand. 
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1 I ' l l remind you t h a t you're s t i l l under oath. 

2 A. Okay. Let me see, t o say t h i s area i s messy i s ' 

3 an understatement. 

4 Q. Well, l e t ' s get the question on the record. 

5 A. Okay. 

6 Q. The question the Examiners had i s when we take a 

7 160-acre spacing u n i t t h a t ' s proposed f o r t h i s w e l l 

8 you've got fou r 40-acre t r a c t s . Describe f o r us i n 

9 whatever order you choose i f there's d i f f e r e n c e s i n 

10 ownership among those as we move up and down the l i s t . 

11 A. Okay. A c t u a l l y i n the n o r t h h a l f and i n the east 

12 h a l f of the southeast quarter, t o my knowledge, i n our 

13 research, ownership i s common. So i n the east h a l f of 

14 the northwest q u a r t e r t h a t ownership i s most l i k e l y --

15 t h a t ownership i s common and a c t u a l l y a l l of the mineral 

16 owners t h a t we're asking t o forc e pool are located i n 

17 t h a t east h a l f of the northwest quarter. We're not 

18 force p o o l i n g anybody i n the east h a l f of the southwest 

19 quarter. But I can see i f t h a t ' s d i v i d e d by 40s i n the 

2 0 south. 

21 EXAMINER JONES: '• What about i n the southeast 

22 t o the northwest and the northeast t o the southwest? 

23 MS. JOHNSON: So are you saying the east 
24 h a l f of the southwest quarter? 

2 5 EXAMINER JONES: Okay. 
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1 MS. JOHNSON: Okay. Sorry. 

2 EXAMINER JONES: So no p o o l i n g or pooling i n 

3 that? 

4 MS. JOHNSON: Let me see. One moment and 

5 l e t me see i f i t ' s s p l i t . 

6 EXAMINER JONES: I b e t t e r l e t David ask 

7 these questions. 

8 MS. JOHNSON: I'm j u s t checking t o see i f 

9 i t ' s s p l i t , i f i t ' s an 80 t h a t ' s common or i f i t ' s two 

10 40s. Okay. The east h a l f of the southwest quarter i s 

11 common. And, once again, t o my knowledge, 60 acres of 

12 t h a t was leased by Devon, who we received a term 

13 assignment -- I'm so r r y , format agreement. Ten acres of 

14 t h a t i s owned by Yates Petroleum Corporation. Five 

15 acres was owned by Charles Wiggins, who we lease. And 

16 another f i v e acres was owned by Cimarex, who we received 

17 a term assignment from. So i t ' s a c t u a l l y two 80s and 

18 not fou r 40s. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. I n t h i s case you're 

20 only p o o l i n g the east h a l f of the west h a l f ; i s th a t 

21 correct? 

22 MS. JOHNSON: The east h a l f of the northwest 

23 quarter, yes. 

24 EXAMINER JONES: No, east h a l f o f the west 

2 5 h a l f . 
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1 MS. JOHNSON: I'm sorr y . Yes, you're r i g h t . 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: The east h a l f of the west 

3 h a l f . 

4 MS. JOHNSON: Yes, you're c o r r e c t . 

5 EXAMINER BROOKS: You show here on E x h i b i t 

6 Number 23 t h a t you're going t o be d r i l l i n g f o u r 

7 h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , but I take i t you've achieved 

8 v o l u n t a r y c o n s o l i d a t i o n f o r the remaining three; i s t h a t 

9 correct? 

10 MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, we've reached agreement 

11 on the other three. 

12 EXAMINER BROOKS: So only the east h a l f of 

13 the west h a l f i s at issue. 

14 MR. KELLAHIN: That's r i g h t . 

15 MS. JOHNSON: At t h i s time. 

16 EXAMINER BROOKS: And what I understand 

17 you're t e l l i n g me i s t h a t the small i n t e r e s t s t o be 

18 pooled are a l l l o c a t e d i n the n o r t h h a l f of the - - o r 

19 the --

2 0 MS. JOHNSON: I n the n o r t h h a l f and i n the 

21 east h a l f of the southeast quarter. That's common 

2 2 ownership. 

2 3 EXAMINER BROOKS: Oh, okay. So they're i n 

24 the n o r t h h a l f and the east h a l f of the southeast 

2 5 quarter. 
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MS. JOHNSON: Yes. 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: So they would be i n three 

3 of the four spacing u n i t s i n c l u d i n g t h i s pool, correct? 

4 MS. JOHNSON: Yes, they would. But we're 

5 only force p o o l i n g one spacing u n i t at the moment. 

6 EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, no, you're only 

7 asking as t o form one non-standard spacing u n i t . You're 

8 po o l i n g f o u r e x i s t i n g standard spacing u n i t s , correct? 

9 MR. KELLAHIN: That's c o r r e c t , yes. 

10 MS. JOHNSON: Yes. 

11 EXAMINER BROOKS: And i n three of those 

12 there's common ownership and the small i n t e r e s t s are i n 

13 those? -

14 MS. JOHNSON: Yes. 

15 EXAMINER BROOKS: And then the southeast 

16 qu a r t e r of the southwest quarter, the pool p a r t i e s don't 

17 own any in t e r e s t s ? 

18 MS. JOHNSON: No, they do not. 

19 EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. I t h i n k I 

20 understand. 

21 MR. KELLAHIN: And the l a s t one on t h a t 

22 t o p i c i s Mr. Bruce f i l e d the a p p l i c a t i o n t o i n d i c a t e a 

23 40-acre poo l i n g . There's no reason t o do t h a t here 

24 because we're associated only w i t h t h a t p o r t i o n of the 

25 gr e a t e r Yeso t h a t we're a s s i m i l a t i n g f o r the h o r i z o n t a l 
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1 w e l l pool. 

2 EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, and I'm glad you 

3 mentioned t h a t because t h a t makes i t easier. 

4 I have nothing f u r t h e r . Very good. Then case 

5 number 14624 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

6 MR. RANKIN: And, Mr. Examiner, j u s t t o make 

7 a p o i n t on record t h a t DHA A r r i n g t o n does not ob j e c t t o 

8 being excluded from the p o o l i n g . I n f a c t , he 

9 s p e c i f i c a l l y requested i t . 
10 EXAMINER BROOKS:1, Okay. Thank you. 

11 MR. KELLAHIN: One moment, Mr. Examiner. 

r 

12 One of the t h i n g s I've not done completely i s i n t a l k i n g 

13 w i t h Ms. Johnson we picked up some a d d i t i o n a l p a r t i e s t o 

14 n o t i f y f o r the non-standard operation u n i t , and t h e i r 

15 n o t i c e p e r i o d f o r the 20 days w i l l not run unless we 

16 leave t h i s record open and continue the case t o the 

17 December 1st time. 

18 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. Okay. Then I 

19 withdraw the statement t h a t case number 14624 has been 

20 taken under advisement. Case number 14624 w i l l be 

21 continued t o December 1st, 2011. 

2 2 Anything f u r t h e r ? 

23 MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

24 EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. We stand 

2 5 adjourned. 
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[Case 14624 was con t inued . ] 
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